
Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny 
Panel to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 21 March 2022 

 
TIME:  2.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record  

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies  

 

 

2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 

3   Minutes of meeting held on 17 January 2022 and matters arising  

 
(Pages 1 - 4) 

4   Impact of the Tackling Poverty Strategy; Inclusive and Green 
Economy Strategy; and Salford Equality and Inclusion Strategy  

 

(Pages 5 - 50) 

5   Work Programme 2021/22  

 
(Pages 51 - 54) 

6   Any other business  

 

 

7   Next Meeting - Monday 16 May 2022  

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013 
Mike Relph Senior Democratic Services Adviser E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBOURHOODS SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

 17 January 2022 
 

 Meeting commenced: 2.00 p.m. 
 “                  ended: 3:20 p.m. 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Dickman - in the Chair 

 
Councillors Brabiner, Fletcher, Nkurunziza, Sharpe, Tresadern, Turner, 
Sharpe and Warner.  

 
Councillor David Lancaster* - Lead Member for Environment,  

                                               Neighbourhoods and Community Safety 
 

OFFICERS:  Mike Relph* - Senior Democratic Services Adviser 

David Seager* - Assistant Director, Operational and Commercial  
      Services 

                      Jeanette Staley* - Head of Community Safety 
                      Andrew Meadows* - Neighbourhood Manager 
                      Vincent Nash* - Neighbourhood Manager 

                      Marie Shields* - Neighbourhood Manager 
                      David Thomas* - Neighbourhood Manager 

                      *Attended via Teams  
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Barnes, Karen Garrido, 

Humphreys and Joan Walsh. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS  

 

The minutes of the meetings of the Panel held on 15th November 2021, were approved 
as a correct record. 

 
4. NEIGHBOURHOOD REVIEW 

 

The Strategic Director for Place submitted a report which provided detailed the work 
of the Neighbourhood Management Function for Salford City Council in 2020/21, 

together with feedback on the implementation of the changed neighbourhood 
boundaries following the ward boundary review. 
 

In addition, each of the four Neighbourhood Managers provided an overview of the 
key activities and issues in their respective neighbourhood areas.  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
Members raised issues, commented on, and noted them, as follows: 

 
(a) Whether the report could be shared with all community committees? This had been 

done, with feedback already received from some.   
 
(b) Neighbourhood Managers, Neighbourhood teams and the work they undertook, 

was appreciated and of vital importance to local communities.  
 

(c) Holding resilience forums monthly was said to be a more appropriate frequency for 
meetings. 
 

(d) An explanation was provided as to why it was not possible to “roll-over” unspent 
monies within neighbourhood devolved budgets to the following financial year, but this 

was an issue which could be taken up with the Chief Finance Officer (Section 
151Officer). A possible increase in the size of such budgets was something which 
could only made at a Mayoral Team level. 

 
(e) Had there been any noticeable benefits in holding community committee and other 

local level meetings, online? This was regarded as a more effective and flexible way 
of working, resulting in a greater participation and attendance, as well as easing 
logistical issues, such as the need to find suitable venues. Despite improved 

attendances, there remained a commitment to maximise community involvement with 
neighbourhood activities. 

 
(f) Did community committees, or individual neighbourhood teams, produce annual 
reports for their respective areas? No, but this was something which could be looked 

at. 
 

(f) How many youth workers were there in Salford? There were 6 dedicated full-time 
youth workers in the City, but they worked with other staff, both from the City Council 
and partner agencies, which in turn led to engagement with young people through a 

variety of initiatives and schemes with varying target groups and objectives.  
 

(g) Would the issues raised by ward councillors during the local “walkabouts” with the 
Chief Executive be acted upon? This was the case and already the issues raised at 
recent “walkabouts” had been actioned or were being investigated. These events had 

also proved beneficial in that, they had involved partners and colleagues who there 
had not always been engagement with and in turn created a wider field of expertise to 

tackle the issues which were identified. 
  
(h) Was there any work being done to address hate crime? This was a key area of 

activity and one which regular updates were provided at the respective resilience 
forums. 

 
(i) Attendance at some community committee meetings was disappointing. This was 
true and varied between neighbourhood areas. The aim was not to adopt a “one size 

fits all” model and instead use different styles of engagement which were effective and 
tailored to the needs of individual areas.  

 

Page 2



(j) How were neighbourhood managers’ workloads managed? The role was generally 
one of responding to issues, which in turn created periods of peaks and troughs. 

Support was provided to ensure workloads never became unmanageable, with a 
commitment to ensuring an appropriate work life balance. 

 
(k) What communication methods were used to engage with local communities?  
These were varied and included social media, using “local community leaders” and 

regular local newsletters. All these and other had proved effective methods of 
communication, but suggestions for others would also be welcomed. 

 
(l) Did the respective neighbourhood managers and teams ever meet up to share ideas 
and best practice etc?  Yes, this was a regular occurrence as was the sharing of 

information to tackle problems common to different areas etc. 
 

(m) Were there any key issues which remained outstanding following the changes to 
local ward boundaries? There was a need to rename the respective areas to reflect 
the new wards which they now covered. Similarly, the GMP (Greater Manchester 

Police) Strategy did not directly correspond with the new areas and needed to be 
adapted accordingly to make it more meaningful and reflective of them. 

 
(n) Councillor David Lancaster, Lead Member for Environment, Neighbourhoods and                                            
Community Safety reported Kelly Wray, a Neighbourhood Development Officer, who 

was leaving the City Council. He paid tribute to Kelly’s valued contribution and 
commitment to the City Council and work on behalf of the people of Salford, extending 

his best wishes to her for the future. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the report be noted, and thanks be extended to all the 

neighbourhood managers and neighbourhood  teams for their work and commitment 
in meeting the challenges of their respective areas and improving the lives of local 

residents. 
                 

5. WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 

 
Members considered the Panel’s Work Programme for 2021/22.  

 
RESOLVED: (1) THAT the Panel’s Work Programme for 2021/22, be noted. 
 

                      (2) THAT the provision of school meals and Bereavement services be 
considered as potential items for consideration at the meeting of the panel to be held 

on 16 May 2022. 
 

6. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on Monday, 21 February  

2022, commencing at 2.00 pm. (Subsequently cancelled with the agreement of the 
Chair) 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 
Or Part 2: Closed to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF 

Lead Member, Inclusive Economy, Anti-Poverty and Equalities 

 

TO 

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel  

ON  
21 March 2022

 

TITLE: Impact of the Tackling Poverty Strategy; Inclusive and Green 
Economy Strategy; and Salford Equality and Inclusion Strategy. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
That the Panel:  
 

 Note and comment on the actions and progress to deliver Salford’s Tackling 
Poverty Strategy, Inclusive and Green Economy Strategy and Equalities and 

Inclusion Strategy,  

 Dedicate time to scrutinising the overall programme of work and its impact in 

achieving its strategic aims.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 

This report and associated action plans provide Scrutiny Panel with an update on 
progress being made in delivering three of the city’s key strategies, as part of The 

Salford Way approach to tackling inequalities. 
 
All three strategies were launched in 2021, following extensive engagement with 

partners in the public, private and voluntary, community and social enterprise sector, 
and each of the attached action plans have been developed to support 

implementation.  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 

 Salford Tackling Poverty Strategy Action Plan (Appendix 1) 

 Salford Inclusive Economy and Inclusive Action Plan (Appendix 2) 

 Salford Equality and Inclusion Strategy Action Plan (Appendix 3) 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 

KEY DECISION: No 

 

DETAILS: 
 

1. Background 
 

1.1. In 2021, Salford’s City Mayor launched a new vision for the next phase of Salford’s 
economic and social transformation. Labelled ‘The Salford Way’, this new approach 
presented a range of new strategies that will influence work across the city over the 

coming years, with the overarching aim of reducing inequalities in the city as we seek 
to build a fairer, greener and healthier Salford for all. 

 
1.2. Specifically, The Salford Way launched three new or refreshed strategies; Tackling 

Poverty Strategy; Inclusive and Green Economy Strategy; and Equality and Inclusion 

Strategy, that form the backbone of the approach. Each strategy has an associated 
action plan (attached as Appendices 1-3) that has been developed with key 

stakeholders, alongside governance arrangements to drive forward delivery.  
 

1.3. Within the council, political leadership for this work sits with the Lead Member for 

Inclusive Economy, Anti-Poverty and Equalities. However, as actions to deliver on the 
strategies fall across several different service areas and cabinet portfolios, progress 

and key decisions on specific areas of work continues to be the responsibility of 
respective Lead Members, alongside the Lead Member for Inclusive Economy, Anti-
Poverty and Equalities. 

 
1.4. A ‘one year on’ outcomes report will be produced and published in April/May 2021 

highlighting work that has taken place over the past year.  
 

2. Salford Tackling Poverty Strategy 

 
2.1 In March 2021, Salford launched its refreshed Tackling Poverty Strategy, building and 

learning from the success of the city’s previous award-winning anti-poverty strategy 
(No-one left behind 2017/2021). 

 

2.2 This updated strategy specifically aims to respond to many of the challenges caused 
by the pandemic by providing an updated framework upon which to tackle the root 

causes of poverty, recognising that support is needed to both prevent people falling 
into poverty and assist those already experiencing poverty.  

 

2.3 The strategy was again brought together by a cross sector partnership including many 
front-line services across the city council, CCG, VCSE sector, alongside the university 

(via the Anti-Poverty Taskforce). The core priorities of the strategy remain as: 
 

• To support people who are experiencing poverty now 

• To prevent people entering into poverty in the future 
• To lobby for long term change in Government policies and programmes 

Page 6

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/396390/anti-poverty-strategy-2021-24.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/396390/anti-poverty-strategy-2021-24.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/inclusive-and-green-economy-strategy/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/equalities-and-inclusion-strategy/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/equalities-and-inclusion-strategy/


 3 

 
2.4 Delivery of the strategy is based on the premise that tackling poverty is a cross cutting 

issue for council services and partners in the city that needs an all-encompassing 

approach, bringing together key services with particular emphasis on tailored and 
integrated delivery of support in a manner which empowers individuals. 

 
2.5 Given the strong emphasis of this agenda in the city over the last few years, delivery 

of this strategy is the most mature of the three.  In terms of impact, the attached high 

level action plan (Appendix 1) provides details of current progress against each of the 
objectives. Key highlights from the last year include: 

 

 Securing agreement with Salford CCG to commit to paying all social care workers in 
Salford the real living wage from 1 April 2022. This significant pay increase will help 

more than 4,000 care workers in the city with an extra £768 per year. 

 Helping around 4,000 residents claim an extra £4.9 million in missing social security 

entitlements and providing £750,000 of crisis support to 6,000 residents through 
Salford Assist.  

 Better Off 2.0 – the next stage of the council’s integrated approach to tackling poverty. 

This involves dedicated personnel focusing on early help, intervention and prevention 
with the aim of developing different pathways, maximising collection and reducing 

demand – helping to achieve the right outcomes for individuals, families and 
businesses. 

 Agreement to voluntarily implement the socio-economic duty as a guiding mechanism 
to shape decision making in the council, showcasing Salford as a leader in 
recognising that local communities are fundamental to tackling poverty and improving 

equality of outcome. Training will be rolled out to services over the coming months. 
 

2.6  In terms of governance arrangements, the Salford Health and Wellbeing Board has 
overall partnership responsibility for delivery of the strategy at a city level to ensure 
partnership working is effective and alignment with other relevant strategies such as 

Salford’s Locality Plan 2020-25. Internally, the Anti-Poverty Operational Group, chaired 
by Cllr August drives forward the cross-cutting work of the city council.  

 
3. Inclusive and Green Economy Strategy 

 

3.1  Salford’s new Inclusive and Green Economy Strategy is our ambitious new plan to  
create a fairer and more inclusive local economy that delivers greater social and 

environmental justice, and where wealth is shared more widely across all our 
communities. 
 

3.2 Launched alongside the tackling poverty strategy in March 2021, it seeks to go even 
further and faster in our ambition to build a local economy that works for everyone. At 

the heart of this is the desire to create an inclusive and green economy that seeks to 
amplify what Salford is already doing and draw on the city’s long history of partnership 
working to shape and influence a new type of participative local economy. 

 
3.3 It was developed following extensive engagement with partners, businesses and the 

voluntary, community and social enterprise sector, and is supported by many of the  
city’s key anchor institutions to ensure it is not owned by any one organisation, but by 
everyone who has an essential role to play. 

Page 7



 4 

 
3.4 The strategy marks a turning point in our approach to sustainable economic 

development in the city and sets out a bold and ambitious blueprint that seeks not just 

recovery from the pandemic, but a radical overhaul of the injustices present in our 
society led by an interventionist, empowered local council and equal, fair and thriving 

local communities. 
 
3.5 The strategy’s five-point action plan is attached as appendix 2, which provides an 

update on current progress with work shaped around the following key priorities: 
 

• Building greater local community wealth - stepping up our efforts to re-direct 

public procurement spend back into the local economy and drive forward 
improvements in social value standards, making sure that public contracts are only 

awarded to businesses who can display progress on developing local supply chains, 
good terms and conditions for staff, and a small carbon footprint.  

 
• Growing the social economy - promoting greater diversity of business ownership, 

from co-operatives and mutuals to employee ownership. We want to create a rich 

ecosystem of alternative economic models to support residents to benefit from local 
wealth generation.  

 
• Accelerating transition to a zero-carbon economy - by delivering the new green 

jobs and industries of the future and investing in clean, renewable energy and 

transport improvements. Building on the great work already happening which has 
seen Salford recognised as the North West’s greenest council by Friends of the 
Earth. 

 
• Identifying opportunities for further insourcing – through the development of a 

new Insourcing Appraisal Framework and Insourcing Commission within the 
council.   

 
• Strengthening our local democracy - focused on opening opportunities for greater 

citizen participation in our economy, in our public spaces, and in our institutions such 

as through our new Crowdfund Salford initiative. 
 

3.6 Key highlights from the past year include: 

 

 Through the work of the Living Wage Action Group, Salford has exceeded its 2021 

target of increasing the number of accredited Living Wage employers in the city to 
68.  

 Increasing the number of organisations now signed up to the Salford Employment 
Standards Charter to 123 (6 are accredited). 

 Development of the council’s new Insourcing Appraisal Framework and 

establishment of the Insourcing Commission. 

 Re-launch of the Salford Social Value Alliance’s 10% better social value campaign 

 Awarded £93k by the Health Foundation to undertake a project aimed at exploring 
‘grassroots wealth building’ by working with local young people to co-produce 

potential supply side responses and mutually / socially owned enterprises. 

Page 8



 5 

 Continuation of the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme including the 
installation of Air Source Heat Pumps at 12 council sites underway and new solar 
arrays.  

 
3.7 In terms of governance arrangements, a standalone multi-agency working group is in 

place, chaired the Lead Member for Inclusive Economy, Anti-Poverty and Equalities. 
This meets every six months to drive delivery of the strategy and action plan and 
ensure alignment with other relevant cross-cutting work of the Climate Action Board, 

Skills and Work Board and Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 

4. Salford Equality and Inclusion Strategy  
 

4.1 Salford is committed to building and sustaining an inclusive city where all our residents 

feel valued, included and have the opportunity to be heard, as well as opportunities to 
develop. To meet this ambition, the council worked closely with local voluntary and 

community organisations and partners throughout the pandemic to develop a new 
Equality and Inclusion Strategy for the city – the third strand of The Salford Way 
approach to ensure Salford has a renewed focus on city-wide action to promote 

equality and inclusion. 
 

4.2 This engagement with the community representing many of the protected 
characteristics elicited a rich and diverse set of reflections on residents’ experiences 
of inequalities over the past two years and what it would take to make people feel more 

included in the life of Salford. Among the many issues to emerge included the need to:  
 

 ensuring more visible representation of protected groups in decision making,  

 ensuring equal access to services and spaces  

 ensuring more effective communications so people better understand what 

services are available and how they can be accessed.  

 Tackle entrenched and systemic racial inequality 

 
4.3  Attached as appendix 3 is the strategy’s current draft action plan. As the strategy 

was only launched at the end of 2021, this is currently the least developed of the three 

strategies in terms of current progress and impact. However, some of the headline 
shared commitments currently underway include:  

 

 The launch of the Salford Women and Girls Commission to address key issues 
affecting women and girls across the city.  

 A commitment for public bodies in Salford to consider voluntarily adopting the 
Socio-Economic Duty. This is something Salford is already actively undertaking 

and a proposal on how we could adopt this will be presented at a future meeting. 

 Ensuring the staff profile of public services and larger Salford based businesses 

are more representative of the UK in terms of ethnicity, disability, gender and 
sexual orientation. 

 Expanding and enhancing our recruitment outreach to attract more diverse 

talent.  

 Ensuring accessibility is a senior and political level priority. 

 Working closely with local education, community learning and employment 
support providers to increase provision and awareness of ESOL. 

 Commit to reporting the ethnicity pay gap. 

Page 9



 6 

 

4.3 Leadership for work on equalities and inclusion is shared by both the Lead Member for 
Inclusive Economy, Anti-Poverty and Equalities in terms of our outward facing 

community and partnership work, and the Executive Support Member for Workforce 
and Industrial Relations in terms of the council’s own workforce inclusion.  

 
4.5 In terms of governance, again the Salford Health and Wellbeing Board will provide 

strategic oversight the strategy, while within the council a new Corporate Equality and 

Inclusion Steering Group has been established, chaired by the Chief Executive. This 
will ensure coordination of our activities to deliver on commitments and greater visibility 

on equalities and inclusion work across the city council. The Equal Opportunities 
Forum will continue to provide member led oversight to consider good practice.   

 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 The Salford Way 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
An overarching impact assessment for all the strategies has been developed but 
individual impact assessment screenings and assessments for each key area of work 

will be undertaken, as and when required. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

 

Page 10

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/the-salford-way/


 7 

CONTACT OFFICER: Jonathan Stancombe TEL NO: 925 1089 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 
No one left behind 
Tackling Poverty Strategy Action Plan 

 
 

Six-month progress report  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 13



 2 

Strategic Priority 1: Preventing People from Falling into Poverty 

Short term (up to 12 months)  

Ref Action Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 

Key outcomes/milestones When Political 
Lead 

Progress  

1.1 Upscale the gathering of 
poverty-related data into a single 

integrated evidence base 
 
Use existing and new data to 

build a better understanding of 
poverty at a localised level within 
Salford.  

Shairi Bowes, 
Salford City 

Council  

 Map potential triggers and identify 

ongoing and emerging issues/trends 

related to poverty. 

 Aim to fully understand the impact of the 

COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent 

lockdown at a localised level and the 

challenges in particular areas of the city. 

 

March 
2022 

Cllr 
Sharmina 

August  

A primary design has been drawn up for the 
evidence base which is planned to be 

shared with service leads for comment 
around appropriate indicators to illustrate 
how we are measuring poverty-related data 

to provide evidence and insight into poverty 
and inequality at a localised level.  
 

This is planned to provide data across a 
range of indicators which illustrate where 
we are at the moment and the outcomes we 

plan to achieve through the three strategies 
under ‘The Salford Way’: Inclusive 
Economy; Tackling Poverty; and the 

Equality Strategy. 

1.2 Develop and implement a 
framework for the delivery of the 
socio-economic duty in policy 

and decision making 
 

Shairi Bowes, 
Salford City 
Council 

 
 
 

 Produce relevant guidance on inequality  
of outcome in Salford with reference to 
minority groups and low-income areas. 

 

March 
2022 

Cllr 
Sharmina 
August 

A proposal for implementation of the Duty 
has been circulated and will be discussed 
at Lead Member in November. This 

includes full guidance, training and a 
framework to ensure effective 
implementation and optimum outcomes in 

enacting the duty by SCC.  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

P
age 14



 3 

Longer term (over 12 months)  

1.3 Promote uptake of free flexible 
childcare provision for eligible 
two, three and four-year olds 

which is responsive to people’s 
needs.  

Rebecca Bibby, 
Salford City 
Council  

 Increase access to childcare with a 
particular focus on services for eligible 
2/3 year olds from low-income families. 

 Review current provision of childcare 
entitlement with an emphasis on flexibility, 
affordability and access to services in 

different areas of Salford.   
 

Ongoing Cllr Jim 
Cammell  

Take up for eligible two year olds is now 
sitting at 79.7% for those who are resident 
in Salford. When including those attending 

a Salford setting but resident in another 
area, this increases to 85.4%. This is a 
continuous increase from Spring 2021 in 

the termly updates when take up rates were 
70.2% for Salford Children and 75% 
including out of area children respectively.  

 
The Early Help and School Readiness team 

are also working on a plan to access wider 
data sets within the council. 

1.4 
 

 
 
 

Continue to promote Salford’s 
Employment Standards Charter  

 
Encourage businesses and 
organisations to pay the Real 

Living Wage and commit to 
delivering fair employment; skills 
development; career 

progression and work 
satisfaction. 

Alison Burnett, 
Salford City 

Council/Salford 
Living Wage 
Place Action 

Group 

 Increase the number of accredited living 

wage employers in the city with reference 

to the Living Wage Action Plan to meet 

the target of 70 accredited employers by 

2022. 

 Support partnership working with sectors 

that have been adversely hit by lockdown 

restrictions.  

 

Ongoing Cllr Tracy 
Kelly 

The Salford Living Wage Action Group has 
exceeded its 2021 target of increasing the 

number of accredited Living Wage 
employers in the city (target 62/ actual 68). 
 

The Action Group continues to provide pro-
active support around the living wage in the 
social care and community /voluntary 

sectors and is reviewing the approach to 
the hospitality and retail sectors.  
 

1.5 Support the delivery of job and 

training opportunities for 
residents into quality and 
sustainable work 

Alison Burnett, 

Salford City 
Council/Skills 
and Work Board 

 Continue the work of Salford Employ to 

connect local people and businesses. 

 

 

 

 

 Continue to work alongside the GMCA to 

prioritise skills development under the 

devolved structure. 

 

Ongoing Cllr Tracy 

Kelly 

Salford Employ continues to connect local 

people to opportunities with some targeted 
support in the care and construction 
sectors, as well as recruitment support for 

the RHS. 
 
A review of community learning in the city 

was undertaken over the Spring/Summer 
and is being used alongside other skills 
analysis work to help shape the skills offer 

in the city.  
 

P
age 15



 4 

 Support delivery of the national Kickstart 

Scheme as a means of long-term 

pathways into employment for young 

people. 

 

 

The Skills Bootcamps and more recent 

Future 50 programmes at MediaCityUK 
have been promoted across the skills and 
work network in the city. To date, 90 

unemployed young people have been 
supported into paid work placements 
through the City Council’s Kickstart 

programme and a further 45 opportunities 
are in the pipeline.  
 

1.6 Increase social value and 

community wealth building 
through the delivery of the 
Inclusive Economy Strategy   

 
Continue to use progressive 
procurement spending alongside 

anchor institutions as a way of 
tackling poverty and promoting a 
local economy that supports 

inclusive growth and prioritises 
local suppliers and local supply 
chains where possible. 

 

Jon Stancombe, 

Salford City 
Council/Anchor 
Institutions/ 

Salford Social 
Value Alliance   

 Review the City Council’s 10% Better 
Pledges.  

 Support the VCSE and private sector to 
mainstream sustainable and local 
procurement into their spending.  

 Increase awareness raising of 
sustainable alternative economic models 
and community wealth building.  

 Mainstream socio-economic and equality 
impact assessments into core council 
decision-making around procurement.  

Ongoing Cllr 

Sharmina 
August  

The council has developed the Salford 

Themes, Outcomes & Measures (TOMS) 
and has now introduced the Social Value 
Portal (SVP) to drive improved offers, 

delivery, visibility and reporting of social 
value across the council. 
 

2021 Social Impact report also produced, 
and work for refresh pledges will begin next 
year.  

 
Salford wide, work is continuing as part of 
the Inclusive Economy Strategy to look for 

opportunities for anchor institutions to work 
on joint procurement opportunities. Initial 
discussion held with NCA alliance and 
some earlier opportunities around cleaning 

and catering contracts identified.     

1.7 Deliver on the development of 
new sustainable and high-quality 
social housing. 

Andrew 
Leigh/Mark Hart, 
Social Housing 

Providers  

 Delivery of 1074 affordable homes 
through partnership working between 
2020/21 and 2022/23.  

 

 Establishment of a new Dérive group 
structure with a subsidiary Dérive RP. 

 

 Delivery of 129 homes for social rent 
across four sites between January 2022 

to August 2022. 
 

By 2022/ 
23  
 

August 
2022. 
 

2023/24. 
 
 

Reported 
annually. 

Cllr Tracy 
Kelly 

Work with Registered Provider partners and 
Council direct delivery is ongoing.  The 
Derive group has been established and the 

Derive RP detailed application is now with 
the Regulator.  
 

Delivery of 129 homes is currently 
progressing across four sites. Expected first 
homes to be completed in March 2022 with 

handovers through to September 2022. 
 

P
age 16



 5 

 Progressing a further three affordable 
housing schemes delivering an additional 

280 new homes (subject to Business 
Case approval). 
 

 There is also work ongoing to progress a 

further three affordable housing schemes. 
This includes working with contractors to 
finalise costs, progressing grant. 

applications and obtaining planning 

permission. (Expected by December 2021).  

Strategic Priority 2: Provide Targeted Support for People living in Poverty 

Short term (up to 12 months)  

2.1 Ensure relevant organisations 
and people with lived 
experiences of poverty are 

consulted 
 
Develop a collaborative 

approach in taking forward the 
Tackling Poverty Strategy to 
build an evidence base that 

ensures poverty-related actions 
are responsive to local needs.  
 

Shairi Bowes, 
Salford City 
Council  

 Work to identify and secure participation 

of priority groups, partner organisations 

and local communities to understand 

how work is being carried out at a 

grassroots level.   

 Ensure all poverty-related work is 

representative of the Salford population 

and lends a clear focus to equality of 

outcome.  

 

March 
2022 

Cllr 
Sharmina 
August  

Work has been underway to ensure 
participation with relevant organisations and 
people with lived experience of poverty. 

This has included the Salford Poverty Truth 
Commission, The VOCAL Poverty, Work 
and Skills Forum and Unlimited Potential’s 

Co-Production Project to ensure 
consultation is representative of the Salford 
population.   

 
There are currently plans in place to 
present the Strategy and gain further 
feedback at a number of events to people 

with direct experience of poverty in the 
coming months.  

2.2 Support awareness-raising of 
poverty in Salford. 

 
Provide information and 
resources to relevant 

organisations/individuals 
regarding the complex interplay 
of factors for those experiencing 

poverty with an emphasis on the 
unequal effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic and subsequent 

lockdown.  
 

Shairi Bowes, 

Salford City 

Council 

 Promote information and awareness 

raising that highlights partnership 

working with relevant services in tackling 

poverty. 

 

 

 Promote regular internal communications 

to all SCC staff which details new anti-

poverty initiatives/actions as well as 

issues at a national level. 

 

 

March 
2022 

Cllr 
Sharmina 

August  

Expanding partnership working is in 
progress with the Tackling Poverty Strategy 

currently being distributed through Salford 
CVS to gain feedback on how the VCSE 
sector can play their part in meeting the 

strategic priorities.  
 
A number of internal communications have 

been distributed showing work underway 
within the Strategy, this has included 
highlighting work being progressed at key 

opportunities such as Challenge Poverty 
Week to staff.  

P
age 17



 6 

 Work to reduce negative attitudes and 

stereotypes often aimed at people living 

in poverty through communications 

strategies and information. 

Work is also ongoing to ensure new 

guidance adopts language that highlights 
poverty as a social rather than individual 
issue, including draft guidance currently 

being circulated for implementation of the 
socio-economic duty.  
 

2.3 Continue to deliver a range of 

effective communications to 
support initiatives listed in the 
action plan which help prevent 

or combat poverty.  
 
Use a range of communications 

to raise awareness locally, 
regionally and nationally of 
positive anti-poverty initiatives in 

Salford.  
 

Comms Team, 

Salford City 
Council 

 Continue to regularly use all appropriate 

channels to encourage uptake amongst 

local people of all available support to 

help them avoid/combat poverty.  

 Continue to regularly use all appropriate 

communications channels to raise 

awareness of poverty in Salford and 

measures being taken to prevent/combat 

this by Salford City Council and partners. 

Ongoing Cllr 

Sharmina 
August 

A refreshed communications approach is 

currently in progress with the team working 
with the Policy Officer for Poverty and 
Inequality on a strategy to communicate the 

tackling poverty work, this includes 
highlighting our strategic priorities at 
opportune moments such as Challenge 

Poverty Week and the International Day for 
the Eradication of Poverty as well as joining 
up comms work with other services and 

looking at new ways of using digital 
mediums to maximise outreach.  
 

2.4 Ensure effective support 

remains in place for low-income 
families to pay their council tax 
bills 

 

Penny Mitchell/ 

Dianne Smith, 
Salford City 
Council 

 Continue to promote the Back on Track 

Campaign to help individuals struggling 

to pay council tax. 

 Highlight the range of options on offer for 

residents, including payment plan 

extensions and the Council Tax 

Reduction Scheme. 

 

Ongoing Cllr Bill 

Hinds 

There has been a strong response with 

over 1500 direct customer contacts coming 
through the online Get Back on Track 
approach for the first half of this year. 

These customers have been supported with 
payment plan changes, advice on benefits 
and guidance to make applications. The 
team are continuing to keep this high-

profile, and it continues to be promoted and 
delivered through all communications, 
becoming well recognised by customers 

and advice providers alike.  
 
 

 
 
 

 

P
age 18



 7 

Longer term (over 12 months)  

2.5 Maximise income and reduce 

outgoings for those in need  
 
Further integrated partnership 

working to join up all available 
assistance for households. 

Sandra 

Derbyshire,  
Clare Fewings,  
Dianne Smith, 

Salford City 
Council 
 

 
 
 

 Continue to promote take up of Salford 

Assist and use this to signpost to long-

term assistance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Further develop information provided on 

the BetterOff Salford website and 

promote accordingly.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Continue to develop multi-channel points 

of contact through Salford Gateway 

Centres and highlight the range of 

integrated services available using 

BetterOff Coffee and Chat Sessions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Cllr Jim 

Cammell, 
Cllr Bill 
Hinds 

Salford Assist continues to offer short term 

support to people who are in a crisis, 
emergency, or major disaster situation, 
working in partnership with other key 

services to help people with longer term 
support. Over the past 14 months, the team 
have received 8600 applications with 

immediate emergency assistance being 
given to 4600 households (gas and 
electricity) and 4500(food assistance).   

 
The BetterOff Salford website continues to 
provide an easy way to find out benefit  

entitlement and help customers apply for 
them online. This includes developing 
information on jobs, childcare, and 

information on debt or money management.  
Since 2018, the total potential customer 
monetary gain is 24 million, this figure is 

calculated on the basis that the customer 
applied for the relevant benefits / support. 
 

During COVID-19 the brand-new cloud 
coffee and chat sessions were launched,  
offering face to face chats for customers to 

meet with a member of a locality team via 
video calls to replace the drop in BetterOff 
sessions usually held in the Gateways.  
Since the launch in June last year, over 3000 

customers have been helped with 100% 
customer satisfaction.  The Spirit of Salford 
Helpline delivered by the Locality Service 

and managed by the Locality Service 
Manager has been providing support to 
customers online and over the telephone.  

Since opening in March 2020, the service 
has received 30,300 incoming calls, made 

P
age 19



 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Provide extra support for people 

struggling to meet their housing costs 

through Discretionary Housing Payments 

and monitor this compared to last year’s 

profile and spend to understand how 

proposed cuts are affecting people in 

poverty.  

12 000 outbound calls to our most vulnerable 

residents across the city and delivered over 
3,000 emergency food parcels. 
 

 
 
 

 
Funding of £760,965 was received for 
2021/22 which is a reduction from last 

year’s allocation of £991,896.   
£520,976.62 of this has already been 
awarded to date with £239,988.38 

remaining. The authority has received 
additional funding through the Household 
Support Fund (period October 21 – March 

22) which can be used for Housing Costs 
(only in cases of emergencies) which may 
help to bridge some of the gap in the 

reduction of DHP funding. The team are 
also working closely with some of the larger 
Salford landlords and the Welfare Rights 

and Housing Options teams to reduce 
possible evictions and homelessness. 
 

2.6 Ensure individuals can access 
proactive information and advice 

about the benefits system 

Catherine 
Connors/Shairi 

Bowes, Salford 
City Council 

 Continue to promote campaigns 

highlighting potential assistance that 

households may be missing out on. 

 

 Provide up to date and targeted advice 

for individuals about entitlement to 

Universal Credit and the full range of 

social security benefits. 

 

 Work in partnership with other 

organisations and the DWP to proactively 

inform clients of potential changes to 

Ongoing Cllr Bill 
Hinds, Cllr 

Jim 
Cammell, 
Cllr 

Sharmina 
August 

WRADAS developed a strategic Comms 
Plan for the service which will join up with 

the wider proposed Anti- Poverty Comms 
Plan. COVID-19 has had a significant 
impact on household incomes, with an 

increase in people claiming benefits as a 
result of the pandemic and a cohort of 
people seriously economically impacted. In 

response, a schedule of social media 
messages have been posted over the past 
6 months promoting WRADAS offer to 

coincide with major policy changes e.g. lift 
on eviction ban, end of payment holidays, 

cut to UC. WRADAS have also ensured 

P
age 20



 9 

their assistance, such as the predicted 

halt of the Universal Credit uplift later this 

year.  

 

 

 Continue delivery of specialist welfare 

rights and debt advice to residents, 

including consultancy to key services in 

Children’s and Adult Social Care. 

that our clients have received additional 

funds made available through the DWP 
schemes: Winter Grant, Local Covid 
Support Grant and now the Household 

Support Fund. 
 

The service has continued to provide the 

full range of specialist independent advice 
with April to Sep data showing a total of 
3,069 cases having been taken on over the 

past 6 months (debt and welfare rights) with 
additional income secured through advice 
and representation of 2.1 million pounds 

directly into the households of those on the 
lowest incomes in the City.  During this 
period, analysis of cases dealt with by the 

specialist Debt Advisers identifies 60 cases 
where households had rent or mortgage 
arrears and/or were at risk of eviction. 

Analysis of cases dealt with by the 
specialist Welfare Rights Officers identifies 
418 cases which involved advice including 

housing related issues such as Housing 
Benefit, UC housing costs, Bedroom Tax 
and Benefit Cap and Discretionary Housing 

Payments claims/challenges. The Debt 
Advice team has secured funding for a 2-
year Debt Adviser to be based within GP 

practices in Little Hulton and Walkden, 
taking direct referrals from GPs and health 
professionals. The well being evaluation 

describing the impact of debt advice for 
clients has commenced and will report on 
next period. 

 
WRADAS has also been working closely 
with Adult Social Care colleagues on a 

number of changes affecting vulnerable 
adults, including the recent DWP decision 

P
age 21



 10 

to phase out Post Office Card Accounts for 

benefit payments, and with GMMH 
colleagues on the implementation of HM 
Treasury’s Breathing Space legislation. 

 

Additionally, the service has delivered a 
range of training sessions to key frontline 

staff over the past 6 months. These include 
UC training to Service Reform, Benefits and 
Council Tax staff, UC and Housing Costs to 

Registered Landlords and Supported 
Tenancies and Benefits for Children and 
Families to Route 29 as well as bespoke 

training for Adult Social Care Practice 
Managers and teams. 
 

 

s2.7 Promote the Salford Residents 
Funeral Service. 

Dominic Clarke, 
Salford City 
Council 

 Continue to raise awareness of the 

service with a focus on fixed price, 

choice and high-quality customer care.  

Ongoing Cllr Bill 
Hinds 

The Salford Residents Funeral service is 
delivered in partnership with Kanes Funeral 
Directors. Launched in October 2018 the 

uptake of the service continues to grow with 
66 services undertaken in 2019, 110 
services in 2020(pandemic impact) and to 

date in 2021, 93 services provided to 
Salford families. These figures indicate that 
the service is increasing its market share 

year on year and more Salford families are 
benefiting from significantly reduced funeral 
costs. 

2.8 Promote fuel poverty assistance 

 
Continue partnership working to 
broaden the understanding of 

residents towards fuel poverty 
and take up of energy saving 
assistance. 

John 

Wooderson, 
Salford City 
Council 

 Promote information around money 

saving options such as switching to less 

expensive household tariffs. 

 Continue to highlight the Warm Salford 

Scheme and national initiatives such as 

the Warm Home Discount Scheme. 

Ongoing Cllr David 

Lancaster 

The Warm Salford Scheme continues to 

progress including provision of help to 
improve energy efficiency in the home and 
working in partnership with the Salford 

Foundation to provide energy advice and 
support to low-income adults and young 
people in or at risk of fuel poverty.  

 
 

P
age 22



 11 

2.9 Support implementation and 

delivery of the Salford Food 
Share Network’s strategic plan.  
 

Raise awareness of food 
insecurity for those in poverty 
and continue partnership 

working with organisations 
around initiatives to alleviate 
this. 

 

Health 

Improvement 
Service/ Salford 
Food Share 

Network/Salford 
CVS/ Citywide 
Services 

 Support the promotion of food clubs as a 

sustainable alternative to food banks with 

a renewed emphasis on cultural and 

dietary needs. 

 

 Continue to promote the city’s Heathy 

Holidays Scheme in partnership with 

relevant organisations.  

 

 Increase uptake of Healthy Start 

Vouchers through targeted promotion 

with a focus on the switch to a digitalised 

scheme later this year. 

Ongoing Cllr 

Sharmina 
August 

Salford Food Share Network continues 

work to deliver food to vulnerable 
households with a planned target of 1.5 
tonnes of food donations for families in 

need this Christmas. Community donation 
points have also been set up across the city 
and a dedicated website listing the most 

needed items.  
 
Delivery of the Holiday Food and Activity 

Programme (HFAP) for children who are 
eligible for Free School Meals ran during 
the Easter and Summer Holidays, working 

in partnership with providers to deliver over 
3,000 free holiday club places and recipe 
boxes for families to take home to prepare 

their own meals. The Christmas holiday 
programme, Salford Winter Fun, is now 
being planned.  

 
Increasing uptake of Healthy Start 
Vouchers is in progress with a focus on 

partnership working to promote the new 
digitalised scheme and highlight the 
benefits of this, such as quicker decision 

making for applications and more 
anonymity when using the vouchers 
electronically. 

P
age 23



 12 

2.10 Further digital skills and 

inclusion  
 
Continue Salford’s aim to 

become a 100% Digitally  
Inclusive City by providing 
support for the most vulnerable 

and digitally excluded residents  
to get online. 

Karen Snape, 

Salford City 
Council/Digital 
Providers 

Network 

 Continue to implement the Digital 
Everyone plan with a focus on 

partnership working to help organisations 
develop their digital support capacity 
through the Digital Providers Network.  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 Address barriers to digitalisation for 

those in poverty, including a lack of 
technology or access to broadband, 
using initiatives such as the Device 

Gifting Scheme.  
 
 

 

Ongoing Cllr Bill 

Hinds 

The Digital Providers Network is 

progressing with partnership working to find 
solutions to digital exclusion and other 
related issues. This includes the co-design 

of a new Digital Inclusion Partnership 
Website – a single front door for digital 
inclusion in Salford. The website aims to 

provide a hyper-local experience for 
customers and organisations who need 
digital information and support. Results 

from the website since it launched in April 
2021 include: 3,285 users; 27,985 Website 
visits and 372 New Users in the last month.  

 
Digital Everyone has also recently 
established a Young Persons Tech 

Committee (YPTC). The fortnightly group 
enables young people to have a voice in 
tackling digital exclusion and shape 

services. The chair of the YPTC also 
attends the Digital Providers Network, 
ensuring that young people have a 

representation at these meetings. We are 
working with our YPTC to create five 
technology spaces in each of our 

gateway/hub localities, bringing access to 
tech in the community. 
 
 

 
Since the launch of the Device Gifting 
Scheme, there has been a positive response 

with applications being reviewed to ensure 
underrepresented groups are being 
reached.  The scheme was launched In 

March 2021 and so far, 277 devices have 
been gifted.  Salford is supporting the GM’s 
Tech Fund and assisting in the distribution of 

donated devices to Salford Schools. Salford 

P
age 24



 13 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 Use the new Digital Inclusion Risk Index 

to create neighbourhood action plans 

based on differentiated needs around the 

city.  

 

 

 Raise awareness and connect adults to 
the new Skills Bootcamp courses at 
MediaCityUK. 

have also set up a direct donation scheme 

for businesses that would like to donate 
directly to the city. The scheme was 
launched earlier this year and so far we have 

received 96 donated devices. 
 
 

The Digital Inclusion Risk Index is currently 
using a number of components to allow the 
team to identify the needs of specific 

neighbourhoods across the city, including 
poverty-related indicators such as 
deprivation and pension credit uptake.  

 
The Skills City initiative continues to be 
delivered working with IN4 at the Landing 

as part of the Digital Kickstart programme.  
The Gateway network will be working with 
IN4 to develop taster sessions that will be 

delivered in the Gateways. Taking Skills 
City into the community will enable us to 
reach, on board, and recruit individuals that 

previously would not have had fair access. 

2.11 Promote financial inclusion and 
explore new methods of 
achieving this.  
 

Expand access to savings and 
responsible lending for Salford 
residents through partnership 

working with Salford Credit 
Union and other relevant 
organisations.    

 
 
 

 
 

Catherine 
Connors, 
Salford City 
Council/FIPG 

(Financial 
Inclusion 
Practitioner’s 

Group)/Salford 
Credit Union 

 Develop a partnership plan to tackle 

financial exclusion in the city.  

 

 Raise awareness of the new national 

Breathing Space Scheme. 

 

 Promote and signpost individuals to 

sustainable lending through digital and 

physical resources. 

 

 Expand the Salford Credit Union Payroll 

Partnership Scheme. 

Ongoing Cllr Bill 
Hinds, Cllr 
Jim 
Cammell, 

Cllr 
Sharmina 
August 

WRADAS PO is working with Salford 
University on a revised proposal which will 
be brought to LMB in the New Year before 
convening a meeting of the FI Practitioners 

group to gather views and agree a three 
point priority action plan for 2022/3.  
 

Awareness has also been raised regarding 
the new Breathing Space Scheme and SCC 
Debt Advisors can now utilise the new 

portal.  
 
Initial meetings have taken place with 

Salford Credit Union to understand the work 
that they do and how to best promote this. 
This has included directing residents to 

P
age 25



 14 

 Continue to develop options for the 

underwriting of small loans for vulnerable 

households in need. 

sustainable forms of lending through 

leaflets and social media, particularly at 
opportune moments such as ‘Talk Money 
Week’. This action is ongoing and will 

continue to be progressed going forward 
with particular reference to financial 
inclusion for Salford residents.   

 

Strategic Priority 3:  Campaigning for long term change in Government policies and 
practices. 

 

Short term (up to 12 months)  

3.1 Continue to develop the 

research and knowledge 
exchange partnership of the 
Salford Anti-Poverty Taskforce. 

 

Salford City 

Council 

Continue to promote the Taskforce’s previous 

research and identify new projects going 
forward to further develop an evidence base 
that highlights the lived experiences of 

people in poverty.  
 

Ongoing Cllr 

Sharmina 
August 

A new report is expected to be published 

soon from the Taskforce on household’s 
experiences of Universal Credit. 
Discussions are also currently underway on 

how to take forward the Taskforce in a 
refreshed format.  

3.2 Continue to highlight to the UK 

Government issues surrounding 
Universal Credit and other 
welfare reform which has 

pushed many more people into 
poverty. 

 

Salford City 

Council 

Campaign to: 

 Suspend the repayment of Universal 

Credit advances and legacy benefit 

overpayments. 

 Remove the benefit cap and two-child tax 

credit limit. 

 Withdraw the use of sanctions. 

 Increase funding for Discretionary 

Housing Payments. 

Ongoing Cllr 

Sharmina 
August 

Ongoing  

3.3 Continue to lobby central 
government for a fairer local 

government settlement  

 

Salford City 
Council 

Continue to promote the importance of local 

government for residents and the need for a 

fairer local government settlement with 

particular reference to the impact of the 

COVID-19 pandemic on council budgets and 

services. 

 

Ongoing Cllr 
Sharmina 

August 

This campaign is long term and will 
continue to form part of the tackling poverty 

work though making continued 
representations to government.   

Longer term (over 12 months)  

P
age 26



 15 

 
 

3.4 Campaign alongside GMPA for 

the introduction of a national 
child poverty strategy 

 

Salford City 

Council 

Highlight the rise in child poverty and the 

impact of this at both a local and national 
level, arguing for a centralised strategy that 
allocates sufficient resources and promotes 

better outcomes for children from low-income 
households. 

Ongoing Cllr 

Sharmina 
August 

This project is long term and will continue to 

form part of the tackling poverty work.  

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

1. Building local community wealth  

Priority  Actions Lead/s Outcomes Progress 2021/22 
1.1 Harnessing the 

power of the Salford 
Pound 
 

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Undertake joint supply chain 
spend analysis across Anchor 
Institutions (including the VCSE 

Sector Anchor Organisations) to 
work towards increasing local 
spend wherever possible.  

 Build relationships between 
procurement and commissioning 
staff across Salford’s Anchor 

Institutions to explore 
opportunities to work together 
to secure greater social value in 

the supply chain. 

 Relaunch of Salford’s 10% 
Better social value Campaign 

 
Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 Develop a joint Public Sector 

Anchor Institution Procurement 
Strategy 

 Development of a ‘place’ plan 

for Northern Care Alliance to 
focus on the economic and 
social role of Salford Royal 

within the city. 

 Develop a single Salford wide 
Social Impact Report that 

captures the social value 
benefits created through all 
Anchor Institutions supply 

chains 
   

 

 
Anchor 
Institutions / 

VOCAL 
Leaders 
 

 
 
 

Anchor 
Institutions / 
Social Value 

Alliance 
 
Social Value 
Alliance 

 
 
Public Sector 

Anchor 
Institutions   
 

Northern Care 
Alliance  
 

 
 
Salford Social 

Value Alliance  

 Increase in the 
amount of public 

service 
procurement 
spending in 

Salford. 

 Increase the 
amount of local 
spending in 

Salford by the 
VCSE Sector 

 Development of a 
shared Social 

Value Outcomes 
Framework linked 
to city priorities.  

 

Work to explore initial opportunities for 

the NCA and Council to work on joint 
procurement opportunities has begun 
with initial discussions and a workshop  

held between procurement 
managers/commissioners held in 2021.  
 

This work will be a priority to progress in 
2022 supported by CLES. 
 

Through the work of the Salford Social 
Value Alliance, the city is already showing 
a great commitment to embedding social 

value within its work and ensuring every 
pound spent in Salford is maximised for 
local benefit. The relaunch of Salford’s 
10% Better Campaign in March 2022 will 

further seek to optimise the social, 
environmental and economic wellbeing of 
Salford and its people through the city’s 

collective spend and activities. 

1.2 Fair employment  

and decent pay 
 

Medium-term (1-4 years) 

 Implement the Living Wage 
Place Action Plan to significantly 
accelerate the number of 

employers (Anchors and private) 
who pay the Real Living Wage. 
 

 Continue to promote the Salford 
Employment Standards and GM 
Good Employment Charters to 

further improve employment 
standards across the city.  

 

 Seek to recruit locally and from 
priority disadvantaged groups 
where possible (inc residents 

with a disability, from low 
income areas, and young people 

 

 Create 1,000 pre-employment 
NHS opportunities every year for 
those furthest away from 

employment 
 

 Put in place strategies to 

address gender and ethnicity 

 
 

Salford Living 
Wage City 
Action Group 

 
 
 

Salford City 
Council / 
Salford CCG / 

GMCA / VOCAL 
Leaders 
 
 

Anchor 
Institutions, 
Businesses / & 

VCSE Sector 
 
 

Northern Care 
Alliance  
 

 
Anchor 
Institutions 

(including 

 Increase the 
number of 

accredited Living 
Wage employers 
in Salford to 62 

by 2021 

 Increase no of 
people working 
for a living wage 

employer to 
19,800 by 2022 

 Increase the 
number of 
employers signed 

up to the Salford 
and GM Charters.  

 Increased  
recruitment from 

local area 

 Reduction in 
gender and race 
pay gaps / 

improved staff 
wellbeing  

The Salford Living Wage Action Group 

has exceeded its 2021 target of 
increasing the number of accredited 
Living Wage employers in the city to 62, 

seeing the number of organisations 
accredited standing at a total of 68. The 
Action Group continues to provide pro-

active support around the living wage in 
the social care and community /voluntary 
sectors and is reviewing the approach to 
the hospitality and retail sectors. And 

from 1 April 2022, all social care workers 
in the city will receive the Real Living 
Wage. 

 
123 organisations now signed up to the 
Salford Employment Standards Charter (6 

are accredited). 
 
The city’s Equality and Inclusion Strategy 

was launched in October 2021 and 
includes clear commitments for larger 
organisations to reduce gender pay gaps 

(where they exist) and begin reporting on 
ethnicity pay gaps.   
 

 

SALFORD INCLSUIVE AND GREEN 
ECONOMY ACTION PLAN 2021-25 
 

Page 29



pay gaps and support workforce 
wellbeing 

 

 Salford Employment Standards 
to be amended to incorporate 

encouragement of employers to 
become a Salford Credit Union 
Payroll partner to provide 

additional employee benefits 

VCSE) /  
Businesses  

 
 
Salford City 

Council / 
Salford Credit 
Union 

1.3 Training the  

workforce of the  
future 

Short term (first 12 months) 

 Launch of the ‘Tech Talent 
Pipeline Partnership’ to tackle 
local digital skills shortages and 
help residents make the most 
of digital opportunities. 

 
Medium Term (2-4 years)  

 Developing sector-based skills 
compacts that reflects more 

effectively priority sectors in the 
Local Industrial Strategy 
including health, construction 

and the green economy   
 

 

 
 
Anchor 
Institutions 

 
 
 

 
Salford City 
Council/ public 

sector and 
employer 
partners 

 Increase the 
number of 

Salford residents 
(including 
women) 
employed in 

digital roles in 
Salford. 

Tech Talent Pipeline Partnership has 

been launched (led by Place and Service 
Reform Directorate) to link education, 
training and local employers to tackle 
skills shortages and help residents make 

the most of digital opportunities. The 
initiative has already helped connect 
people to digital opportunities with the 

launch of two academies to develop the 
next generation of cyber and data 
analysts.  

 
The new skills and work approach has 
been developed, which will also look at 

how the role of sector based skills 
compacts should be integrated into this 
moving forward. 

 
In addition, the council is the first local 
authority in the country to sign up as a 
supporter of the Tech She Can charter to 

increase the number of women working 
in technology roles including working 
with schools to raise awareness of ICT 

jobs available; creating female tech role 
models and advertising all of our roles 
through ‘women in tech’ sites.  

 
Salford’s HOST has also launched Skills 
City with a commitment to fast-track 450 

technology career starts each year for 
women and the BAME community. So far 
211 learners (33% female, 43% BAME) 

have graduated from Phase 1, Sep to Dec 
21, 63% of whom have already secured 
jobs and or attended job 

1.3 Fostering  

Business Citizenship 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Establish a clear ‘ask and offer’ 
for local Salford businesses on 

how they can deliver greater 
social value; aligned to the key 
city priorities and the work of 
the SSVA. 

 

 Create on online resource of 
case studies to showcase and 

celebrate what being ‘a citizen’ 
means in practical terms for 
businesses.  

 
Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 Creation of a Salford Business 

Challenge that encourages 
businesses to innovate and 
tackle a pressing challenge for 

the city.  
 

 Development of a Civic 

University Agreement to outline 
how, the University and the City 

 

 
Salford Social 
Value Alliance 

/ The Business 
Group Salford 
 

 
 
 

Salford Social 
Value Alliance 
 

 
 
 
 

Salford City 
Council / The 
Business 

Group Salford 
 
 

 

 A sector specific 
set of outcomes 

for businesses to 
deliver  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

The Business Team has recently recruited 

new staff and are just starting to re-
engage with their key accounts and as 
part of the engagement they will be 

trying to ascertain is what Social Value 
they’re already delivering.  
 

The ‘ask’ and offer to businesses is also 
currently being updated. They will also be 
looking at other ways to capture wider SV 

impact such as through the GC BGH 
team, and potentially an annual business 
survey. 

Page 30



 
 

can draw on combined expertise 
and ambition to make Salford an 

even better place to live, work, 
play and study.  
 

University of 
Salford  

1.5 Create thriving  
local neighbourhood 
centres 

 
 

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Work with the Institute of Place 
Management to undertake a 

comprehensive analysis of 
neighbourhood district centre 
footfall data and performance. 

 
 

Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 Undertake a programme of 

engagement with stakeholders 
in each neighbourhood centre to 
identify those interventions that 

would have the most impact on 
vitality and viability. 
 

 Participate in the GM Town 
Centre Challenge Fund and 
national High Streets Task Force 

Pilot to develop a vision and 
plan to transform Swinton Town 
Centre 

 
 
 

Salford City 
Council  
 
 

 
 
 

Salford City 
Council/The 
Business 
Group Salford / 

VCSE Anchor 
Organisations 

tbc 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Awaiting update 

2. Growing the social economy   
2.1 Promoting  
different models of 

enterprise ownership 
 

Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 Build the capacity of alternative 

providers in the supply chain 
(such as co-operatives, social 
enterprises) to create new 

opportunities for locally owned 
and socially minded enterprises. 
 

 Encourage the creation of new 
social enterprises and co-
operatives through tailored 

business support including 
exploring the use of incentives 
such as discretionary relief of 

business rates.  
 

 Development of a social 

enterprise business support 
function, including lobbying to 
expand the priorities of the GM 

Growth Hub. 
 

 Encourage communities to take a 

greater role in the management 
and ownership of local assets 
where there are clear benefits for 

communities. 
 

 Creating environments for local 

people to create new enterprises 
to enable them to contribute to 
community wealth building (e.g. 

creation of a Development Trust / 
pump prime funding) 
 

 
 

Anchor 
institutions / 
The Business 

Group Salford / 
Social 
Enterprise City 

 
 
Salford City 

Council / VCSE 
sector  
 
 

 
 
 

Salford City 
Council  
 

 
 
 

Public Sector 
Anchor 
Institutions / 

VCSE Sector  
 
 
Public Sector 

Anchor 
Institutions / 
VCSE Sector 

 Increase the 
number of 
socially minded 

businesses in 
Salford  

 Increased use of 
community asset 

transfer   

 Develop 
recommendations 
for partners to 

better support 
existing 
community-led 

organisations; 

A consortium of Unlimited Potential, 
University of Salford and the Council has 

been awarded funding of £98k to 
undertake a project aimed at exploring 
‘grassroots wealth building’ by working 

with local young people to co-produce  
potential supply responses and mutually / 
socially owned enterprises to  

meet future demand in chosen priority 
areas. 

2.2 Investing in a  

thriving VCSE sector 
 
 

 

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Carry out a research study of the 
VCSE sectors capacity for 
community wealth building and 

identify practical ways for the 

 

 
University of 
Salford / 

Salford CVS 

 Increase in VSCE 
sector 

investment. 
Target: xx 

The Salford Crowdfund platform was 

launched in 2021. The scheme is open to 
anyone from Salford, including residents, 
community groups, individuals, local 

businesses, charities, social enterprises 

Page 31



 sector to increase their income 
generation 

 

 Undertake research to analyse the 
digital maturity of the VCSE sector 

and identify opportunities to 
increase participation in an 
increasingly digitalised economy.   

 

 Supporting VCSE organisations 
with investment in tech & digital 

to enable them to modernise and 
compete more effectively 
 

 Launch of a new Salford 
crowdfunding platform to invest 
an additional £250,000 into 

innovative local VCSE solutions 
that supports local priorities  
 

 Explore the role and low take up 
of social investment due to 
risks/costs including working with 

national investment bodies to get 
more investment in Salford 
 

 Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 

 Undertake a comprehensive 

review of VCSE sector 
commissioning and grant funding 
spend to identify opportunities to 
maximise investment including 

that from the private sector.    
 

 Ensure the continuity of 

commissioning in order to 
increase the stability of the VCSE 
sector 

 

 Undertake a Social Return on 
Investment Impact Analysis of 

VCSE Commissioned organisations 
 

 Explore the role of Salford for 

Good as a potential community 
foundation and sector 
development agency. 

 

 Valuing the VCSE Sector in Salford 
as an equal partner and 

supporting their aspirations to 
grow as part of the Inclusive 
Economy model in Salford 

 

 
 

 
 
Salford City 

Council / 
Salford CVS 
 

 
 
Anchor 
Institutions   

 
 
 

 
Salford CVS / 
Salford City 

Council / 
Salford CCG 
 

 
 
Salford CVS 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Salford City 
Council/NHS 
Salford CCG 

 
 
 

Public Sector 
Anchor 
Institutions  

 
 
Public Sector 
Anchor 

Institutions / 
Salford CVS 
 

 
Salford CVS 
 

 
 
 

Anchor 
Institutions 

 Increase 
commercial 
income 

opportunities  
for VCSE 
organisations  

 
 

and grassroots sports clubs. Up to 
£10,000 match funding is available for 

ideas that create a brighter future for 
Salford. A one-year impact report is 
currently being finalised and will be 

presented at the next meeting.  
 
Awaiting further updates from Salford 

CVS.  

3. Transitioning to a green local economy  
3.1 Investment in 

renewable energy  

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Undertake an awareness raising 
campaign to encourage residents, 
businesses and anchor institutions 

to switch to renewable energy 
suppliers and/or install renewable 
energy measures at home or 

business premises.  
 
Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 

 
 
Salford City 

Council  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 Increased 
number of well 

paid, green jobs 
for local people 

 Reduction in C02 
Emissions. Target 

xx by 2024  

 Increased local 
renewable 
electricity 

Salford's Climate Change work is 

organised so that it reflects the five-year 
GM Environment Plan and co-ordinated 
through the city’s Climate Action Board.   
Current projects include: 
 
The Public Sector Decarbonisation 

Scheme which is currently underway with 
11 roof mounted solar PV arrays already 

completed and the installation of Air 
Source Heat Pumps at 12 council sites 
underway.  

Page 32



 Construction of a new solar farm 
in Little Hulton and hydro power 

source in Charlestown to power 
homes and create new green jobs 
 

 Phasing out of gas boilers in the 
city’s social housing stock  

 

Salford City 
Council 

 
 
 

 
Social Housing 
Providers  

generation . 
Target xx 

 

 
Unlocking Clean Energy in Greater 

Manchester (UCEGM) – ERDF funded 
programme – which will see a Hydro-

electric scheme built on the river Irwell 
and a 2 Megawatts Solar farm on council 
land in Little Hulton.   

 
IGNITION Nature Based Solutions Living 

Lab at the University of Salford with 4 key 
areas; an innovative rain garden (SUDS 
scheme), a green wall and deck housing 

seasonal, pollinator, edible and 
biodiverse plants, sustainable drainage 

tree planting and green roof and wall.  
 
The Culture Change and engagement 

sub-group of the Climate Action Board is 
also focussing on Carbon Literacy as one 

of its key themes.  A Carbon Literacy 
squad has been set up to explore how 
Salford Partners can work together to 

promote and facilitate carbon literacy 
training.  Partners involved in the Squad 

include – Salford Royal Foundation Trust, 
The CCG; Salford University; the Carbon 
Literacy Project and Salford City Council. 

 

1.2 Investing in 
sustainable forms 

of transport 
 
 

Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 Continue to invest in walking and 

cycling infrastructure in Salford as 
part GM’s Mayor’s Cycling and 
Walking Challenge Fund 

 

 Explore options for anchor 
institutions to switch their vehicle 

fleet to electric or low emission 
vehicles 

 

 Scale up the installation of electric 
vehicle charging infrastructure 
across the city to ensure supply 

meets demand 
 

 Expand the Green Wheels Travel 

scheme to include all anchor 
institutions and the VSCE sector 

 

 
Salford City 

Council / 
GMCA 
 

 
 
Anchor 

Institutions 
 
 

 
Salford City 
Council / 
GMCA  

 
 
 

Salford City 
Council   

 Improve air 
quality and 
reduced CO2 

emissions 

 Increased 
opportunities for 
local green 

businesses  

 Increasing the 
proportion of 
trips by 

sustainable 
modes of 
transport  

Continued investment is being made in 
sustainable travel solutions such as the 

development of extensive walking and 
cycling routes as part of the GM bee 
network, the purchase of electric vehicles 

for anchor institutions vehicle fleets and a 
recent successful bid for funding for e-
cargo bikes. 

1.3 Improving  
energy efficiency  

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Expand the city’s Carbon literacy 
programme to share good 

practice and embed ‘low-carbon 
thinking’ into the lifestyles and 
operations of the city. 

 

 Continue to promote the Warm 
Salford campaign to raise 

awareness of National, Regional 
and local schemes available for 
local residents to improve the 

energy efficiency of their home.  
 
Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 Support the development of a GM 
housing retrofit partnership / 
accelerator to build local sector 

capacity, improve skills and 
provide access to finance/support 
for local enterprise.   

 

 
 
Carbon 

Literacy 
Consortium 
 

 
 
 
Anchor 

Institutions   
 
 

 
 
 

 
Social Housing 
Providers/ 

GMCA 
 
 

 

 Number of 
retrofit measures 
installed in 
homes per year. 

 Public Buildings 
to have an 
average rating D 
or better by 2024 

and C or better 
by 2030 where 
economically 

viable. 

 Increased 
number of 
organisations 
meeting a 

minimum Silver 
Carbon Literate 
Standard 

There are many initiatives across the city 
and GM addressing reducing heat 
demand from existing commercial and 

public buildings, with the award of 
£78.4m to GM (£5.2m for Salford) to 
support the Decarbonisation of the Public 

Estate. A Buildings Dashboard is currently 
being set up which will be full database 
across Partner organisations (GMP, GMF, 
TfGM, GMWaste, School Academies, CCG, 

SRFH) that will also inform the project 
pipeline. 
 

There are also many initiatives across the 
city addressing increasing retrofit and 
reducing fuel poverty however, these are 

not at the scale that is required to make 
a substantial impact on the city's targets 
for retrofitting. The challenge of meeting 

the GM retrofit target is acknowledged 
by the GMCA in their reporting  
on the progress on the GM 5 Year 

Environment Plan Targets. 

Page 33



 Measure, report on and improve 
the operational energy efficiency 

of premises, coming together 
within sectors to do so. 
 

 
All Anchor 

Institutions  

4. Strengthening public services  
4.1 Identify  
opportunities to  

insource core public 
services   
 

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Develop a rolling calendar review 

in advance of contract end dates 
or break clauses to ensure 
adequate arrangements can be 

put in place to fully appraise 
insourcing as an option. 
 

 Develop an Insourcing Appraisal 
Framework to develop clear 
evidence-based criteria when 

appraising the future of 
outsourced contracts.  

 
 

 
Salford City 
Council 

 
 
 

 
 
Salford City 
Council 

 
 
 

 TBC The council has undertaken work with 
APSE to develop an Insourcing Appraisal 

Framework to provide clear evidence-
based criteria to guide SCC decision 
making, linked to a rolling calendar 

review of contracts in advance of end 
dates or break clauses.  Work will take 
place this year with council 

commissioners to build this into 
evaluation and decision-making process.  
  

4.2 Maximizing 
opportunities to  
generate greater 

commercial income   

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Develop a commercial strategy for 
the council’s newly insourced 

technical services (and other 

trading services) to identify 

opportunities for market growth. 

Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 Expansion of Derive to further 
increase its involvement in the 
commercial housing market 

through implementation of its 
five-year business plan.  

 
 
 

Salford City 
Council 
 

 
 
 

Salford City 
Council 

 Increase in 
commercial 
revenue 
generated by the 

council  

 Increase the 
number of social 
rented homes, 

funded through 
commercial 
income  

Within the city council, a more 
commercial approach to procurement 
supported transformation will form a core 

strand of the Council’s proposed 
INNOVATE programme and internally 
focused Procurement strategy.  

 
Longer term, work is ongoing with 
Registered Provider partners to expand 

involvement in commercial housing 
market. The Derive group has been 
established and the Derive RP detailed 
application is now with the Regulator.  

 
Delivery of 129 homes is currently 
progressing across four sites. Expected 

first homes to be completed in March 
2022 with handovers through to 
September 2022. 

 

5. Strengthen civic participation and local democracy  
5.1 Growing a  

stronger local  
democracy 

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Promote the Make Your Mark 
campaign to encourage Salford’s 
electorate to vote during the 
2021 local and mayoral elections 

 

 Support the work of the Salford 
Youth Council to create new 
opportunities for young people to 

meet city leaders and influence 
decision making.  

 
Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 Further explore ways to increase 
democratic participation and 
accountability in local decision-
making processes including the 

through the launch of a Salford 
Democracy Commission. 

 

 
Salford City 
Council  

 
 
 
Salford City 

Council/Salford 
Youth Council 
 

 
Salford City 
Council/Salford 

CVS 
 
 

 
 

 Residents and 
young people 

feel they can 
influence the 
future of their 

community and 
local decision 
making.  

 Increase in 
number of people 
registering to 
vote and election 
turnout  

 

Successful delivery of three local 

elections in May 2021 with increased 
turnout.  
 

 

5.2 Increase citizen 
participation in  
service delivery  

using co-production 
 

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Launch of a second Salford 
Poverty Truth Commission to 
provide new insight into the loved 

experience of poverty and inform 
future service delivery 
 

 
 
Community 

Pride/ Anchor 
Institutions 
 

 

 Work underway to launch a second 
Poverty Truth Commission to ensure 
lived experience voice remains at the 

heart of anti-poverty work and decision 
making.  
 

Page 34



 Launch of a Salford Women’s 

Commission to provide a voice for 

many women who feel 

marginalised in their communities 

and develop strong actions to 

support them locally. 

Medium-term (2-4 years) 

 Use the successful lived 
experience model (as seen with 

the Poverty Truth Commission) as 
a tool in other spheres to provide 
an in-depth understanding of 

communities, citizens and service 
users when formulating future 
service activity and provision 

 

 
 

Salford City 
Council / 
Salford CVS 

 

Salford Women’s Commission launched in 
February 2021 following two listening 

events. Will run more 12 months to 
address the key issues affecting women 
and girls across the city. The commission 

is made up of 18 women from 
organisations across Salford’s 
community, business, public and private 

sector and will report back findings at 
end of 2021 

5.3 Celebrate the  
Spirit of Salford 

Short-term (first 12 months) 

 Organise celebration events 
including the Spirit of Salford 

Community Awards, Heart of 
Salford Awards and Salford 
Business Awards to recognise the 
work of citizens and businesses 

who do so much to make Salford 
the great lace to live and work.  

 
 

Salford City 
Council / 
Salford CVS / 
University of 

Salford / The 
Business 
Group Salford 

 Spirit of Salford 
Community 
Awards held 

biennially 

 Heart of Salford 
Awards held 
annually 

 Salford Business 
Awards held 

biennially 

Successful online Spirit of Salford 
Community Awards and Heart of Salford 

Awards held in 2021.  

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Salford Equality and Inclusion 
Strategy Action Plan 
2022 to 2025 
 
DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION 
 
 

 

P
age 37



2 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

Strategic Priority 1: People are visibly represented in decision making and have their differences 

valued 
Short term (up to 12 months)  

Ref Action Lead Officer/ 
Organisation 

Key outcomes/milestones When Political Lead 

1.1 Work to ensure our local workforce is 
truly reflective of the local communities 
we serve.  
 
 
Increase representation from diverse 
communities on interview panels for 
Public sector organisations. 

City Partners,  
 
Council: 
Catherine 
Sharples/Jessica 
Pathak/Talat 
Afzal   
 

 Partner organisations to review their 

systems in collecting equality monitoring 

data. 

 Partners organisations carry out a HR 

workforce data cleanse to ensure they 

have a clear overview of the demographics 

of their workforce which can be 

interrogated.  

 Organisations set their own targets but 

move towards increasing re against each of 

the protected characteristics – through staff 

self-declaration or new staff members 

 Development of a salford wide dashboard 

to be created on progress and identify 

bottlenecks and specific challenges to meet 

the objective. 

 

2022 Cllr August/ Cllr 
Bentham    

1.2 Develop and implement a framework 
for the delivery of the socio-economic 
duty in policy and decision making 
 
 

Shairi Bowes, 
Salford City 
Council 
 
 
 

 Produce relevant guidance on inequality of 
outcome in Salford with reference to 
minority groups and low-income areas. 

 Mainstream socio-economic and equality 
impact assessments into core council 
decision-making around procurement. 
 

March 2022 Cllr August 

P
age 38



3 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

1.4 Ensure staff and volunteers receive 
appropriate and regular equality and 
inclusion training to enhance 
awareness and understanding of 
Salford’s diverse communities, barriers 
faced and the value of an inclusive 
workforce 

City Partners.   

 
Council: 
Catherine 
Sharples/Jessica 
Pathak/Talat 
Afzal / Magda 
Sachs  

 Map Salford organisations equality training 
offer 

 Develop a Salford offer on training to cover 
the main elements of EDI and CIA training 

 
 

2022 Cllr August/ Cllr 
Bentham    
 
 

1.5 Work to establish a new Salford’s 
Women’s Commission to examine 
some of the key issues facing women 
in Salford and strengthen the city’s 
response to those issues through 
developing supporting 
recommendations. 

Jessica Pathak, 
Salford Council, 
 
Anne Marie 
Marshall,   
Salford CVS 

 Establish framework for commission – 
citizens panel methodology 

 Organise engagement event to identify 
issues for the commission to discuss. 

 Identify and invite participants to sit on 
panel and contribute to year long process 

 Report written at the end of 12 months 
outlining recommendations for Salford 
bodies to explore. 

 Link with GM women’s Panel 
 Promote regular internal communications 

to all SCC staff  

 Work with Salford Youth Service and youth 
council around young womens safety 
 

2022 Cllr Sharmina August 

Longer term (over 12 months) 

1.6 Ensure meaningful and regular 
engagement takes place with 
residents and communities so they 
can truly influence and shape the 
future of their local area in venues and 
times that are accessible to 
communities  
 

City Partners 

 
Salford CCG:  
Amanda Raffety 
 
Council: Jess 
Pathak, Public 
Health Team 
 

 Ensure communities are consulted with as 

part of EIA process + ways to share 

intelligence are shared  

 Host or facilitate an annual event attended 

by over 30 representatives 

 Mark and celebrate different equality days 

across the city inc HMD/BHM/LGBT History 

Month/ refugee wee. 

 

2022-24 Cllr August 

P
age 39



4 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

 

  

1.7 Consciously seek to diversify all 
consultation groups. This should 
include those being consulted, but 
also be considered in the formulation 
of questions and throughout the 
process 

City Partners  

 
Council: Jess 
Pathak, Public 
Health Team 
 

 Complete a review and of the council’s 

approach to consultation and engagement 

and recommendations for action 

2022-24 Cllr August/ Cllr 
Bentham    

1.7 Ensure marginalised and people from 
protected groups have more power 
and influence in decision-making 
bodies through exploring the use of 
more democratic forms of decision-
making such as a People’s Taskforce, 
Residents Assemblies or participative 
budgeting for example. 

Council:  
Jess Pathak, 
Jonathan 
Stancombe 

 Map the current decision-making panels/ 

bodies and identify where Protected 

Characteristic groups have a seat and vote 

 work alongside the GMCA & Equality 

Alliance to prioritise salford residents sitting 

on these panels 

 

2022-24 Cllr August  

1.9 Improve organisations meaningful 
engagement with diverse staff groups 
to proactively expand and enhance our 
recruitment outreach to attract more 
diverse talent (particularly in senior and 
political positions) 
 

City Partners  

 
Council:  
Catherine 
Sharples / Talat 
Afzal  

 Review recruitment and selection practices. 

 Work with staff groups and put in place 
actions to identify areas for improvement in 
recruitment and selection practices. 

 Training and involvement of staff forum 
members sitting on interview panels for snr 
positions. 

 Proactive recruitment to address staff gaps 
from under represented PC groups – work 
with communities to increase diversity of 
workforce (TBC) 

 Cllr Barbara Bentham 
 
 

P
age 40



5 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

Strategic Priority 2: People have equal physical and digital access to services and spaces 

Short term (up to 12 months) 

Ref Action Lead Officer/ 

Organisation 

 Key outcomes/milestones When Political Lead 

2.1 Continue the city’s award-winning 

work to tackle digital inclusion for 

those facing digital, social, or physical 

barriers, particularly targeting support 

towards older people, disabled people 

and low-income households with 

children. 

Karen Snape, 

Salford City 

Council  

 

Salford Disability 

Forum 

 

New Salford 

disabled network 

– SCVS 

 

 

 

 Promote the city’s digital devices 

appeal scheme to collect and 

redistribute donated devices to local 

schools and low-income families  

 Continue to implement the Digital 

Everyone plan with a focus on 

partnership working to help 

organisations develop their digital 

support capacity through the Digital 

Providers Network 

 Develop and implement a Digital 

Inclusion Action Plan for the borough 

in conjunction with partner 

organisations. Actions to be updated 

following the production of the Digital 

Inclusion Action Plan  

 Use the new Digital Exclusion Risk 

Index to create neighbourhood action 

plans based on differentiated needs 

around the city.  

 Raise awareness and connect adults 

to the new Skills Bootcamp courses at 

MediaCityUK. 

2022 Cllr Hinds 

P
age 41



6 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

 Plan to include an accessibility audit to 

cover digital services; reviewing the 

design of both existing and planned 

provision to see what could be 

improved and working closely with 

groups to implement change. 

 Address barriers to digitalisation for 

those in poverty, including a lack of 

technology or access to broadband, 

using initiatives such as the Device 

Gifting Scheme.  

 

2.3 Within public-sector decision-making 

meetings, no final decisions will be 

signed off without the completed EIA 

being considered.  

 

 

 

Salford City 

Council elected 

members/NHS 

partners  

 

 

 Further embed EIA process across 

council 

 Refreshed training rolling out across 

council and to partners. 

 Delivery of explicit training outlining 

Cllrs and senior management legal 

responsibilities of “Due Regard”  

 Publish completed EIA’s  

 Share intel which is identified within 

the EIA across Salford 

2022 Cllr August 

Longer term (over 12 months) 

P
age 42



7 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

2.4 Multiagency commitment to 

undertaking regular consultation with 

service users and disabled groups to 

find out what works well for them 

across the full experience of engaging 

with the services and what could be 

better.  

 

This will include a commitment to 

undertake regular accessibility audits 

for both physical and digital services 

and spaces; reviewing the design of 

both existing and planned provision to 

see what could be improved and 

working closely with the groups in 

implements changes 

City Partners  

 

Salford Disability 

Forum,  

 

Council: 

Catherine 

Sharples/ Talat 

Afzal  

 

New salford 

disabled network 

– SCVS 

 

Breakthrough UK 

 

GM CODP 

 

GM disabled 

panel 

 Work to identify and secure 

participation of priority groups, partner 

organisations and local communities to 

understand how work is being carried 

out at a grassroots level.   

 Ensure the council's digital platforms 

are accessible and conform to Web 

Content Accessibility Guidance 

(WCAG) AA standard 

 Ensure staff understand accessibility 

requirements and have the resources 

to provide information in inclusive and 

accessible formats by creating and 

promoting accessibility guidance. 

 Explore opportunity of staff member 

being trained to develop easy read 

publications in house 

 

Jan 22 Cllr August/ Cllr 

Bentham  

2.4 Multiagency Commitment to 

undertaking regular consultation with 

service users and disabled groups to 

find out what works well for them 

across the full experience of engaging 

with the services and what could be 

better.  

 

This will include a commitment to 

undertake regular accessibility audits 

for both physical and digital services 

City Partners  

 

Salford Disability 

Forum 

 

New salford 

disabled network 

– SCVS 

 

Breakthrough UK 

 

 Work to identify and secure 

participation of priority groups, partner 

organisations and local communities to 

understand how work is being carried 

out at a grassroots level.   

 Ensure the council's digital platforms 

are accessible and conform to Web 

Content Accessibility Guidance 

(WCAG) AA standard 

2022-24 Cllr August/ Cllr 

Bentham  

P
age 43



8 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

 

and spaces; reviewing the design of 

both existing and planned provision to 

see what could be improved and 

working closely with the groups in 

implements changes 

GM CODP 

 

GM disabled 

panel 

 Ensure staff understand accessibility 

requirements and have the resources 

to provide information in inclusive and 

accessible formats by creating and 

promoting accessibility guidance. 

 Explore opportunity of staff member 

being trained to develop easy read 

publications in house  

P
age 44



9 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

Strategic Priority 3:  People are communicated with in the right language while receiving support to access 
mainstream information 
Short term (up to 12 months) 

Ref Action Lead Officer/ 

Organisation 

Key outcomes/milestones When Political Lead 

3.1 Work closely with local education, 

community learning and employment 

support providers to increase 

provision and awareness of ESOL 

(English for Speakers of Other 

Language) courses to ensure more 

people have the opportunity to 

improve their English and benefit from 

equal access to local opportunities. 

City Partners  

 

 

Support the co-ordination and 

standardisation of ESOL (English for 

Speakers of Other Languages) provision 

across the borough by developing an 

ESOL Quality Assurance Framework, 

recognising that this can be a significant 

barrier to employment. 

2022 Cllr Cammell 

3.2 Undertake a review of local written 

translation and face-to-face 

interpretation services to ensure they 

are as accessible as possible, have 

clear guidance and are sensitive to a 

range of different cultural factors. 

When translating and sending out 

information, commit to involve 

members of the community to make 

sure the language is appropriate, and 

messages are listened to. 

Salford CCG 

Salford Council  

Healthwatch 

CYPS 

Deaf Network 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Build on review which Salford CCG and 

salford Health watch have carried out  

 

Council and CCG policy on Information 

Accessible Policy and guidance reviewed 

and highlighted on website and to 

partners. 

 

Promote awareness of alternative 

language and communications methods 

used by the council and others such as 

BSL, Hearing Loops, translated literature, 

easy read.  

 

Ensure all council buildings know how to 

use and set up access equipment 

2022 Cllr Cammell / Cllr 

August  

P
age 45



10 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

 
 

Longer term (over 12 months) 

3.3 Ensure all public information and 
documents are made available in a 
range of accessible communication 
formats such as Audio-Visual and 
Braille, and where possible, easy read 
versions. 

City Partners,  

 
Salford Council: 
Jessica Pathak, 
Coms Team 

Work with partners to promote 

Identify ongoing costs and be clear how 
these resources/services can be accessed 

2022-24 Cllr August / Cllr 
Hinds 

3.4 Services will always use appropriate 

language to signal who their services 

are for and make it clear if they are 

gender-specific (if they need to be). 

This includes encouraging the use of 

personal pronouns to consciously 

ensure trans and non-binary people 

feel included.  

City Partners, 

 

Salford Council: 

Jessica Pathak, 

Work with Salford MAF, Salford Pride, 

LGBT foundation and staff LGBTQI forum 

to develop and deliver training.  

 

Work with Salford youth service to look at 

their LGBTQI training offer.  

 

Also get support from stonewall and GM 

equalities officers  

2022-24 Cllr August / Cllr 

Hinds 

3.5 When communicating information for 

disabled people, a social model of 

disability should be used.  

 

City Partners,  

 

Salford Council: 

Jessica Pathak, 

Scope perspective partners use when 

considering disability   

 

Work with council disability services  

 

As part of disability History month, 

Partners Comms teams can promote key  

messages – linking the activity with 

Salford’s disabled people’s groups 

2022-24 Cllr August / Cllr 

Hinds 

P
age 46



11 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

Strategic Priority 4 Tackling structural racial inequality  

Short term (up to 12 months) 

Ref Action Lead Officer/ 

Organisation 

Key outcomes/milestones When Political Lead 

3.2 Adopt a Salford-wide reverse mentoring 

programme to encourage new and 

innovative ways to address the barriers 

to race equality.  

 

City Partners, 

 

Salford Council: 

Catherine 

Sharples, Talat 

Afzal, Jess Pathak   

 Explore funding opportunities – 

programme ran by NCA 

 Develop initiative with partners across 

Salford and SCC staff group 

 to include training for mentors and 

mentees 

 outcomes identified 

 link with GM Race Equality board 

2022  Cllr August / Cllr 

Bentham  

3.3 Ensure effective and consistent data 

monitoring processes are in place to 

better measure and track workforce 

race equality. 

City Partners   

 

Salford Council: 

Catherine 

Sharples, Talat 

Afzal,  

Via WRES action plan 2022  

3.5 Improving digital inclusion for children 

from ethnic minority backgrounds; and 

ensuring that post-Covid-19 catch-up 

programmes are tailored to specific 

communities that need additional 

support 

Salford Council: 

Karen Snape, 

Natalie Stables 

 

VCSE sector 

Via Digital You initiative 

 

Develop community intel on parents’ level 

of engagement with digital skills and target 

some support to BAME communities 

2022 Cllr Cammell  

3.6 Proactively challenge unconscious bias 

and racism within workplaces, 

including operating with zero tolerance 

to discrimination in any forms. 

City Partners  

 

Training on unconscious bias 

Peer review policy and practices in place 

inc 

Whistleblowing policies  

2022 Cllr Bentham / Cllr 

August  

P
age 47



12 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

Salford Council: 

Sharples, Talat 

Afzal, 

 

 

3.7 Work closely with the Greater 

Manchester Race Equality Panel and 

the Greater Manchester Equality 

Alliance to further explore racial and 

ethnic disparities in the city and make 

recommendations for change. 

 

Salford Council: 

Jess Pathak  

GM Race equality forum Chair sits on EOF 

Build stronger links for salford with REP 

 

ongoing Cllr Sharmina August 

Longer term (over 12 months) 

3.8 Increase representation of ethnic 

minorities in the public, private and 

VCSE sectors.  

 

City Partners,   

 

Salford Council: 

Catherine 

Sharples, Talat 

Afzal  

 Explore with partners what 

benchmarking system orgs are using.  

 Encourage partners to participate in the 

WRES 

 Separate actions linked to workforce 

strategy. Incl improving recruitment, 

retention of BAME staff.  

 Become a City of Sanctuary. 

 Explore adopting the race equality code 

framework across Salford 

2022-24 Cllr Sharmina August 

3.9 Setting targets for representation in 

governing bodies and amongst 

teaching staff  

Children’s Service  Scope existing work in schools and 

supplementary schools 

  

3.10 Working towards zero exclusions to 

address the systematic marginalisation 

of black boys in the education system 

Salford City 

Council,  

Children’s Service 

Convene task and finish group to scope 

and Examine trends and pattens  

 Cllr Cammell  

P
age 48



13 
Salford Equalities strategy action plan V1 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

3.11 Ensuring more transparent and 

consistent reporting of the use of 

policing powers, including stop and 

search and continuing to raise 

awareness of hate crime and 

encourage people to report incidents 

Shaun Donnellan, 

GMP 

   

3.4 Commit to work towards completely 

eliminating the ethnicity (and gender) 

pay gaps across all levels of 

organisations in Salford. 

 

City Partners 

 

Salford Council:  

Sam Betts, 

Catherine 

Sharples  

Link to workforce action plan 

Benchmarking SCC starting position 

 

2022-24 Cllr Barbara Bentham 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2021/22  
 

 
SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 

 

 

Date 
 

Topic/Action Responsible officer(s) 

21 March 2022 Tackling Poverty, Equalities and Inclusion Economic Strategies - assessment 

of impact  
 

 

April  No meeting run up to local elections 

 

 

16 May 2022 Landlord and Business Licensing - Overview and Effectiveness (in the interim 
Panel asked to identify specific themes and issues they wish to be briefed on 

and consider)  
 

SCL Overview and Annual Update  
 
Overview of relevant areas/activities of People Directorate  

 
 

 

 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 5



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2021/22  
 

 

 

 

ABEYANCE LIST 

 

Protocol for Managing Unauthorised Encampments - current legislation and requirements of local 
authorities (information provided further consideration by Panel required to be confirmed) 
 

 

GMP Recording of Crime/iOPS - Update (subject of all member briefing) 
 

 

Engagement with and feedback from Street Champions (as raised at meeting of 19/7/21 see Minute 5(i)) 
 

 

The following items are potential ones identified following a recent meeting with the Lead Member for Anti-Poverty, 

Neighbourhoods, Financial Inclusion and Equalities 
 

Covid-19 Pandemic  

 “social” impact on older generation, isolation and access to services (particularly online ones)  

 Social inequalities identified  
 

 

Tackling Poverty, Equalities and Inclusion Economic Strategies - assessment of impact  
 

Provisionally Feb 2022 

Social inclusion   

 impact of Covid-19 particularly on the elderly and there access to online services 

 HM Government proposals for introduction of ID requirements for voting at UK elections 

 

 

Crime/Community Safety - activity by extremist political groups  

P
age 52



  

Community and Neighbourhoods Scrutiny Panel 

Work Programme 2021/22  
 

 

 

  

Portfolio of the Board 
 

Membership  

1. Community Safety  

2. Communities and Neighbourhoods  
3. Regulatory Services (including Environmental Health, Trading 
Standards, Licensing)  

4. Operational Services (including Citywide, bereavement, 
operational transport, refuse and street cleansing, parks 

management, grounds maintenance)  
5. Salford Community Leisure Client  
6. Cultural strategy  

7. to be the designated Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee  
8. To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this 

functional area. 

Councillor Dickman (Chair) 

Councillor Karen Garrido (Deputy Chair) 
Councillor Barnes 
Councillor Brabiner 

Councillor Fletcher 
Councillor Humphreys 

Councillor Nkurinziza 
Councillor Sharpe 
Councillor Tresedern 

Councillor Turner 
Councillor Joan Walsh 

Councillor Warner 
 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of meeting held on 17 January 2022 and matters arising
	4 Impact of the Tackling Poverty Strategy; Inclusive and Green Economy Strategy; and Salford Equality and Inclusion Strategy
	04b Appendix 1 - Tackling Poverty Action Plan 2021 Progress
	04c Appendix 2 - Inclusive Economy Action Plan progress
	04d Appendix 3 - Draft Equality Strategy Action Plan

	5 Work Programme 2021/22

